
         
 
ADDENDUM #1 
RFP NUMBER:  2014049-PT-P 
Janitorial Services for Transportation Facilities RFP 
 
DATE:  May 29, 2014 
 
TO:  All Potential Offerors 
 
City of Harrisonburg’s Janitorial Services for Transportation Facilities RFP (RFP# 2014049-PT-P), is modified 
as follows: 
 
As part of this addendum, a copy of the sign-in sheet for the Pre-Proposal Site Visit on May 28, 2014 at 1:00pm 
is attached at the end of this document (Attachment A).  All information provided below was provided at this 
meeting. 
 
The City is in the process of hiring a Facilities Manager, who will start Monday, June 2, 2014 and will 
eventually take over as Contract Administrator of this contract. 
 
The estimated move-in date to move into the new administration building will be June 9, 2014.  An auction of 
surplus items will be held June 11, 2014 at 1:00pm at the old administration building.  Upon completion of the 
move and liquidation of the surplus property, the old administration building will be torn down and the space 
will be filled in with dirt, to become a parking area.   
 
The new facilities must be taken care of from the beginning of move-in.  Federal Transportation Administration 
(FTA) funds were received for this building, and that means that they may inspect at any time, so it is important 
to show it is well taken care of. 
 
Approximately 160 to 170 individuals are employed by the Harrisonburg Department of Public Transportation 
(HDPT).  HDPT operation during the busiest time, when James Madison University (JMU) is in session, runs 
from 6:00am to 6:00pm during the week and from 6:30am to 2:15am on weekends.  Christmas time is the 
slowest time of the year for HDPT and is usually the “catch-up” time.  During the time of year when snowy 
weather hits, HDPT is responsible for keeping the parking lots clean at the facility.  HDPT still operates when 
JMU or the school system declares a snow day. 
 
The first floor space in the administration building is mostly for daily operations and will hold the most traffic 
in the building.  The spaces utilizes retired recycled rubber and also sequel rubber cork, which will not need 
waxing, as well as sealed concrete, which is utilized in the highest traffic areas.   
 
Questions & Answers 
 
1.  Question:  Will the City license or certify the vendor or individual to operate the scrubber that is provided? 

 
Answer:  No.  There will be video training available, but the City will not license or certify.  It is not a 
rideable scrubber machine. 
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2.  Question:  Will you provide information on the materials used in the flooring. 
     

 Answer:  Yes, as part of this addendum, you will see attached two documents pertaining to information on     
both the retired recycled rubber flooring, sequel rubber cork flooring and also the sealed concrete flooring, as 
well as the care instructions for each (Attachment B).  The concrete flooring should not need any special 
care, unlike the other two flooring types.  The standard cleaning process used for typical concrete floors is 
acceptable.  The retired recycled rubber is used on the main (first) level of the administration building in a 
total of 2,445 square feet of space.  It is also used on the second level of the administration building in a total 
of 3,126 square feet of space.  The sequel rubber cork is only used on the second level of the administration 
building in the corridor and also the Admin Reception area, for a total of 786 square feet of space. 

 
3. Question:  How many floor mats are there in the administration building? 

 
 Answer:  Not many.  Nearly all of the mats are built-in to the floors.  Currently, the floor mats in the old 
facility are replaced weekly by Unifirst.  At this time it has not been decided how many floor mats will be in 
the new administration building, if any at all.   

 
4.  Question:  What will be the flooring in the elevator in the administration building? 
 
     Answer:   It will be the recycled rubber material. 
 
5.  Question:  Is there a janitorial closet on the second floor of the administration building? 
     

Answer:  No, there is no janitorial closet on the second floor.  Only the janitorial closet on the first floor is 
available.   

 
6.  Question:  What spaces will need to be cleaned in the maintenance building? 
 

Answer:  Everywhere except the wash bays, the maintenance bays, and the NAPA parts rooms (both first and 
second levels).  The mechanics are expected to keep their own bays clean.  Anywhere in the facility that is 
common area, as indicated by the yellow paint strips, will be expected to be kept clean by the successful 
vendor.  This includes, but is not limited to, the areas in between the maintenance bays, the stairway up to the 
second level conference room, the lunch room and kitchen area, the bathrooms and locker rooms, custodial 
closet, uniform storage area, reference center, Maintenance Supervisor office, Assistant Supervisor office, 
and equipment storage area.  A diagram of this space is attached to this addendum showing the layout, 
dimensions and spaces that will need to be cleaned and maintained in the maintenance building (Attachment 
C).  All spaces colored in green on this diagram are expected to be cleaned and maintained by the successful 
vendor.  Attachment E is a diagram from Shockey (1-A101) which will help give dimensions and 
measurements of this space. 
 

7.  Question:  How many trash cans will there be in the maintenance building? 
    
     Answer:  We are planning to have about 15 to 20 of the 55-gallon trashcans for this facility. 
 
8.  Question:  How will the used parts be disposed of in the maintenance building? 
 

Answer:  Disposal of the parts is handled by the City.  All parts go into a container and the City sells these 
parts.  The successful vendor will not need to empty this container or dispose of any used parts. 

 
9.  Question:  How much cardboard does the parts room in the maintenance building get rid of daily? 
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Answer:  It is never more than one (1) 55-gallon trash bin, and generally always less than this.  All of this 
cardboard can go in the dumpster out front of the maintenance building. 
 

10. Question:  What is the estimated start date for the cleaning contract to begin? 
 

Answer:  As soon as possible upon award.   
 

11. Question:  Will the vendor be responsible to provide the hand towels in the maintenance facility break 
room? 

 
Answer:  No.  The City will provide and maintain our own supplies for items such as toilet paper dispensers, 
paper towel dispensers, soap dispensers, etc.  The successful vendor will only be responsible for providing all 
of the cleaning chemicals and materials used for execution of this contract. 

 
12. Question:  Can you provide the square footage of the maintenance facility that will need to be cleaned?  The 

RFP only gives the gross square footage for the entire building. 
 

Answer:  See Attachment C for this diagram.  We have also provided a diagram of the administration 
building (Attachment D). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
**NOTE:  Due to the size of the files, Attachments C, D & E to this Addendum #1 will be posted as 
separate documents from this addendum cover sheet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All other requirements, terms and conditions of the RFP remain unchanged.  
 
Addendum page must be signed and returned with your proposal to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
By:  Pat Hilliard, CPPB 
        Purchasing Agent 
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ATTACHMENT A
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Howard Shockey & Sons, Inc.
1057 Martinsburg Pike, Winchester, VA  22603  UPS/FedEx

P.O. Box 2530, Winchester, VA  22604  Mail
540-667-7700/540-723-4180 Fax

Submittal Cover Sheet

Date: 12/03/2013 Project Name: HARRISONBURG D.P.T.-
ADMINISTRATION BLDG

Submittal Number: 096229.01 Job Number: 947300
Package Number:

Arch Spec Section: 096229
Revision Number: 0

Description: Cork Flooring: Specs, Installation, Maintenance
Discipline: FLOORING

Responsible Parties:

Subcontractor: Stafford Systems, Inc.
9107 Industry Drive Unit O
Manassas Park, VA  20111
000-000-0000
000-000-0000

Submittal Items: 

Item No. Item Description/Notes Type Action Subcontract Architect
1 Cork Flooring: Specs, Installation, Maintenance Prod. Data AN Date Due:

Date Received:
Date Sent to Sub:

11/27/2013
11/27/2013
12/10/2013

Date to:
Date Due:

Date Received:

12/03/2013
12/17/2013
12/10/2013

Submittal  Notes-Contractor:  Approved as Noted: Refer to RNL's Comments

Submittal Notes-Architect:  

ATTACHMENT B
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SUBMITTAL
 

Date:  

Submittal No.:  

Project Name: HDPT 

RNL Project No.: 3184.01 

Construction 

Manager 

Bill Thomas 

Submitting Contractor Howard Shockey 

& Sons 

Description:  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Comments: 

 

RNL DESIGN, Inc.  

   APPROVED   APPROVED AS NOTED 

   REJECTED 

   Resubmit Specific Item(S) Noted 

   REVISE and RESUBMIT 

   Transmitted with No Review Made 

Actions taken by RNL Design and/or its consultants with respect to this Submittal 
are only for general conformance with the design concepts of the Project based 
upon the Contract Documents.  In all respects, RNL Design’s actions are subject to 
the terms and conditions of its contract with its Client.  Notations, “corrections” or 
comments on the Submittal(s) do not modify the obligations of the contractor or its 
subcontractors from those set forth in the Contract Documents.  Contractor shall 
field verify, confirm and correlate all dimensions, sizes and tolerances before 
construction or installation of any component or assembly begins.  Unless 
otherwise specifically noted on the Submittal, all fabrication, installation and 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, schedules and procedures 
remain solely the responsibility of the contractor.  Contractor remains solely 
responsible for job site safety and all safety precautions and procedures.  
Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary, RNL Design by reviewing this 
Submittal does not assume professional responsibility for any design or work 
product (including but not limited to its technical accuracy or professional 
competency) provided by contractor or owner on a “design build” or “performance 
specification” basis.  RNL Design provides no warranties, express or implied. 

By: Logged by: 

Date: Date: 
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 Howard Shockey & Sons, Inc.
 1057 Martinsburg Pike, Winchester, VA  22603  UPS/FedEx
 P.O. Box 2530, Winchester, VA  22604  Mail
 540-667-7700/540-723-4180 Fax

 
 

Submittal Cover Sheet
 

 
Date: 12/03/2013 Project Name: HARRISONBURG D.P.T.-

ADMINISTRATION BLDG
Submittal Number: 096229.01 Job Number: 947300
Package Number:    

Arch Spec Section: 096229
Revision Number: 0

Description: Cork Flooring: Specs, Installation, Maintenance
Discipline: FLOORING

 
Responsible Parties:
 
Subcontractor: Stafford Systems, Inc.

9107 Industry Drive Unit O
Manassas Park, VA  20111
000-000-0000
000-000-0000

  

 
Submittal Items: 
 
Item No. Item Description/Notes Type Action  Subcontract  Architect

1
 

Cork Flooring: Specs, Installation, Maintenance
 

Prod. Data
 

FYA
 

Date Due:
Date Received:

Date Sent to Sub:
 

11/27/2013
11/27/2013
00/00/0000
 

Date to:
Date Due:

Date Received:
 

12/03/2013
12/17/2013
00/00/0000

 
 
 

 
Submittal  Notes-Contractor:  
 
Submittal Notes-Architect:  
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